
Hilo Wastewater Treatment Plant Outfall Repairs 
Job No. WW-4160 

Addendum No. 23 
Page 1 of 4 

ADDENDUM NO. 23 
TO 

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR 

HILO WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OUTFALL REPAIRS 
JOB NO. WW-4160 

AT 
SOUTH HILO, HAWAI‘I 
COUNTY OF HAWAI‘I 

NOTICE TO ALL PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS 

The items listed below are made a part of the contract and shall govern the work, taking 
precedence over the previously issued plans and specifications governing the particular item 
of work mentioned. 

SPECIFICATIONS 

DELETE the Special Notice to Bidders in its entirety and REPLACE with the revised Special 
Notice to Bidders dated 07/07/16, attached.  (3 pages total) 

PROPOSAL 

DELETE page 3 of the previously issued Proposal and REPLACE with revised Addendum 
No. 23 Proposal page 3, attached.  (1 page total) 

Item number nine (9), Dye testing during the repair of leak points Sta. 8+55 and 
Sta. 41+46, including all incidentals and appurtenances to complete the testing, 
CHANGE the quantity to one (1), lump sum. 

DRAWINGS 

DELETE Plan T-1, sheet 1, and REPLACE with attached Plan T-1, sheet 1. 

DELETE Plan C-3, sheet 5, and REPLACE with attached Plan C-3, sheet 5. 

CORAL AVOIDANCE AND MINIMIZATION PLAN (CAMP) 

The Contractor will be responsible for video recording the coral relocation process, and shall 
provide the recorded video in mp4 format. 

GEOTECHNICAL INFORMATION FOR ANCHOR SYSTEM 

For boring information, see attached as-built plans for projects S-1430 and S-1455, 
(9 pages total) 
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QUESTIONS FROM BIDDERS 

1. For bid item #9 it specifies a quantity of 10 LS, should this be 1 LS? 

Response:  Quantity should be 1 LS. 

2. Drawing C-3 note 7 mentions epoxy coating material. Is this still applicable since the 
epoxy coated rebar was replaced with stainless steel? 

Response:  The rebar has been replaced with stainless steel.  Note 7 on drawing  
C-3 will be deleted. 

3. The May 8, 2013 pre-conference was listed as mandatory. Does the requirement of 
attendance to this meeting still stand as a precondition for bidding? 

Response:  No, the June 7, 2016 pre-conference was not a mandatory meeting. 

4. Is the contractor responsible for the post transplantation coral monitoring? 

Response:  No, the contractor will not be responsible for the post-transplant 
monitoring of the coral. 

5. Typically the contractor will have to submit a sight specific BMP to meet permit 
requirements, will this submittal be required for this project? 

Response:  The 401 permit BMP plan represents the minimum BMP measures 
required to be implemented in the construction of the subject project.  Upon approval 
by the Department of Health - Clean Water Branch (DOH-CWB), the general 
contractor may furnish additional BMP measures as deemed necessary. 

6. This project is scheduled to be completed during possible winter surf. What will be 
the criteria to determine the number of additional days added to the contract based 
on forecasted adverse weather conditions? 

Response:  It is the intention of the County to work collaboratively with the 
Contractor in a reasonable manner to ensure a safe work environment for all 
employees.  

7. Who determines what constitutes forecasted adverse weather conditions? 

Response:  The County will seek a reasonable determination of what constitutes 
forecasted adverse weather conditions, particularly as it relates to the ability of the 
Contractor to work safely. 

8. If coral is damaged beyond the contractor's control, will the contractor still be subject 
to penalties and fines? 

Response:  If the contractor or his subcontractors are responsible for any coral 
damages, then they will be subject to penalties and fines. 
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9. In the schedule there is no time allotted for submittal review and approval, how much
review and approval time should the contractor allow for this procedure?

Response:  Shop drawing review by the Engineer, once submitted, will take no more
than 15 calendar days, per Section 01300, 3.02 Review Procedure, B.

10. In the original bid documents the project had 180 calendar days from NTP. The
current bid documents have a possible compressed schedule of 60 days after NOA.
Can the project duration be extended back to the 180 days? It does not seem that
consideration is being given to submittals and weather.

Response:  The schedule duration was reduced to accommodate circumstances
beyond the control of the County, and it is understood that the project may
experience delays that are beyond the control of the Contractor, therefore it is the
intention of the County to work towards a reasonable solution in the event that such
delays are encountered.  Also, in order to expedite the process, the County
encourages submittals to be transmitted for review prior to NTP.

11. In section 02313 concrete fabric form 3.03F it calls for backfill and compaction as
specified in the plans. Is backfill and compaction still required? If so what is the
material to be used for the backfill? What is the specification for compacting material
underwater?

Response:  Fabric forms will be placed in the trench and then filled with concrete.
The concrete filled fabric forms should fill up the key trenches.

12. If the material to be excavated for the toe trench is found to be too hard to excavate
with traditional inductor or airlift methodology, will the contractor be required to use
hydraulic jackhammers to meet the minimum trench depths?

Response:  The minimum trench depth shall be reevaluated if the sea bed is too
hard to excavate with the equipment specified in the contract documents.

13. Is the rebar pinning required for detail 3, C2 since it is technically "double stacked"?

Response:  The intent of using rebar is to construct an integrated structure.

14. When dye testing is performed for acceptance and leaks are found anywhere other
than the contract required repaired areas, like STA 5+95 and STA 40+51 which were
deleted, will the contractor be held responsible to repair those areas?

Response:  The Contractor will be responsible for completing the work as shown in
the plans.

15. If the contractor performs steps 1, 2 and 3 of the grout injection and there are still
dye leaks, what will be the acceptance criteria for that type of repair?

Response:  An alternate exterior repair method will be provided, with an amendment
of the appropriate permits, should the 1, 2 and 3 step grout injection method not be
successful in stopping the leaks.
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SPECIAL NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

“Reminder Note:  “A” general engineering contractors and “B” general building contractors 

are reminded that due to the Hawai‘i Supreme Court’s January 28, 2002 decision in Okada 

Trucking Co., Ltd. v. Board of Water Supply, et al., 97 Haw. 450 (2002), they are prohibited 

from undertaking any work, solely or as part of a larger project, which would require the 

general contractor to act as a specialty contractor in any area where the general contractor has 

no license.  Although the “A” and “B” contractor may still bid on and act as the “prime” 

contractor on a “A” or “B” project (See, HRS § 444-7 for the definitions of an “A” and “B” 

project.), respectively, the “A” and “B” contractor may only perform work in the areas in 

which they have the appropriate contractor’s license (An “A” or “B” contractor obtains “C” 

specialty contractor’s licenses either on its own, or automatically under HAR § 16-77-32.). 

The remaining work must be performed by appropriately licensed entities.  It is the sole 

responsibility of the contractor to review the requirements of this project and determine the 

appropriate licenses that are required to complete the project.” 

Bidders must possess a valid “A” General Engineering license and the specialty licenses 

included in the attached “Minimum Contractor Licensing Requirements for Project” have 

been determined by the County to be required. 

1. Contractor Licensing requirements for the project will be discussed during the

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting for the project on the date and time established by the

Notice to Bidders.

a. Anyone who disagrees with the “Minimum Contractor Licensing Requirements

for Project” shall raise objections during the Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting or

submit written comments no later than ten (10) consecutive calendar days prior to

bid opening.

2. Failure to list Sub-contractors having valid licenses in accordance with the

“Minimum Contractor Licensing Requirements for Project” will result in automatic

disqualification of the bid as a non-responsive bid.

3. The “1% Rule” as it is commonly referred to regarding work requiring specialty

licenses is a discretionary waiver mechanism and is not grounds for an automatic

waiver.  The County has no intention of granting discretionary waivers for bids

failing to list Sub-contractors in accordance with the “Minimum Contractor Licensing

Requirements for Project”.
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HILO WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OUTFALL REPAIRS, WW-4160 

MINIMUM CONTRACTOR LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR PROJECT 

 

Reference:   (a) HAR Title 16, Chapter 77, Contractors 

(b) Okada Trucking Ruling 

 

License Description Comment/Remarks 

C-31a Cement Concrete Contractor 
 Covered by “A” General Engineering 

Contractor License 

C-43a 
Reconditioning and Repairing 

Pipeline Contractor 
 Covered by “A” General Engineering 

Contractor License 

 

Notes: 

1. The above list provides the minimum Contractor licensing requirements for the project 

and reflects the County’s current understanding of the relevant licensing requirements.  

As per the Special Notice to Bidders it is the sole responsibility of the contractor to 

review the requirements of the project and determine the appropriate licenses that are 

required to complete the project and to determine if additional specialty licenses will be 

required for performance of the work. 

 

2. The Contractor is advised that any disagreements with the above listing regarding 

Contractor Licensing Requirements required for performance of the work to complete 

this project shall be made during the Pre-Bid Meeting or by submitting written comments 

no later than ten (10) consecutive calendar days prior to bid opening.   

 

 

RESPONSIBILITY OF OFFERORS 

 

Offeror is advised that if awarded a contract under this solicitation, Offeror shall, 

upon award of the contract, furnish proof of compliance with the requirements of  

§103D-310(c), HRS: 

 

1. Chapter 237, tax clearance; 

2. Chapter 383, unemployment insurance; 

3. Chapter 386, workers' compensation; 

4. Chapter 392, temporary disability insurance; 

5. Chapter 393, prepaid health care; and 

6. One of the following: 

a. Be registered and incorporated or organized under the laws of the State, 

hereinafter referred to as a “Hawai‘i business”; or 

b. Be registered to do business in the State, hereinafter referred to as a 

“compliant non-Hawai‘i business.” 

 

Refer to the Award of Contract provision herein for instructions on how to comply 

with the above requirements. 
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CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS BY STATE AND COUNTY CONTRACTORS 

PROHIBITED, PURSUANT TO HAWAI‘I REVISED STATUTES (HRS) §11-355 

If awarded a contract in response to this solicitation, offeror agrees to comply with HRS §11-

355, which states that campaign contributions are prohibited from a State and County 

government contractor during the term of the contract if the contractor is paid with funds 

appropriated by the legislative body between the execution of the contract through the 

completion of the contract. 

HAWAI‘I REVISED STATUTES, CHAPTER 103B - EMPLOYMENT OF STATE 

RESIDENTS ON CONSTRUCTION PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS, AS 

AMENDED, BY ACT 192 SLH 2011 

HRS Chapter 103B, unless its application is in conflict with any federal law or will disqualify 

the County from receiving federal funds or aid, shall apply to this contract.  It requires the 

Contractor and applicable subcontractor(s) to perform its contract with a workforce of which 

not less than eighty percent (80%) are Hawai‘i residents.  Reference Special Provisions 

7.1(p) for related project specific requirements. 

HAWAI‘I REVISED STATUTES, SECTION 103-55.6, PREFERENCE FOR 

BIDDERS IN APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS, ACT 17 SLH 2009 

The preference for bidders in apprenticeship programs [reference Special Provisions Section 

7.1, Subsection (o) and Item 10, Section (B)] shall apply to this project if the estimated cost 

is $250,000.00 or more, unless it is in conflict with any federal law or if it would disqualify 

the County from receiving federal funds or aid. 

CODE OF ETHICS 

If you are an officer or employee of the County of Hawai‘i, or a business in which an officer 

or employee or officer or employee’s immediate family has a controlling interest, the 

provisions of Hawai‘i County Code §2-83(c) must be complied with before a contract for 

goods or services may be entered into with any County agency. 

CONTRACTOR’S EXPERIENCE FORM 

All Bidders shall submit Contractor’s Key Staff Experience Form contained within the 

SECTION 01800 of the specifications with the bid package.  Failure to submit the required 

form will result in a determination that the bid is a NON-RESPONSIVE bid and rejection 

of the bid proposal.   

Revised:  07/07/16 
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PROPOSAL SCHEDULE 

HILO WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OUTFALL REPAIRS 

SOUTH HILO, HAWAI‘I 

 

BASIC BID 

Item 

No. 

Approx. 

Qty. 
Unit Description Unit Bid Price Amount Bid 

      

1 2 EA Public Meetings 

 

$___________ 

 

$___________ 

 

2 1 LS Project Photos 

 

Lump Sum 

 

$___________ 

 

3 5 DAY Relocate existing coral located within 

the work zones to an adjacent area, 

including all incidentals required to do 

the work. 

 

$___________ 

 

$___________ 

 

4 1 LS Repair of segment with undercutting, 

Sta. 41+54 to Sta. 41+92, including 

concrete fabric form, geotextile filter 

fabric, concrete, toe trench excavation, 

preparation of subgrade, per Detail 

3/C-2 including all incidentals and 

appurtenances, complete in place. 

 

Lump Sum 

 

$___________ 

 

5 4 EA Concrete testing by 3rd party firm 

including sampling, specimen (set of 4 

cylinders) and laboratory work. 

 

$___________ 

 

$___________ 

 

6 1 LS Repair of leak point at Sta. 8+55, 

including all incidentals and 

appurtenances, complete in place. 

 

Lump Sum 

 

$___________ 

 

7 1 LS Repair of leak point at Sta. 41+46, 

including all incidentals and 

appurtenances, complete in place. 

 

Lump Sum 

 

$___________ 

 

8 1 LS Work required to meet conditions of 

Permits from the Department of Army 

and State Department of Health. 

 

Lump Sum 

 

$___________ 

 

9 1 LS Dye testing during the repair of leak 

points Sta. 8+55 and Sta. 41+46, 

including all incidentals and 

appurtenances to complete the testing 

 

 

Lump Sum 

 

 

$___________ 
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